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Nexus Infrastructure plc

("Nexus", the "Company" or the "Group")

Preliminary unaudited results for the year ended 30 September 2024

Steady performance despite industry headwinds

 

Nexus I nfrastructure plc (AI M:NEXS), a  leading provider of essen)al  infrastructure solu)ons, announces  i ts  prel iminary

unaudited results  for the year ended 30 September 2024 ("F Y24"). The Company wi l l  publ ish i ts  audited results , a longs ide

its  annual  report and accounts , and notice of annual  general  meeting, in due course.

Commen�ng on the year in review, Charles Sweeney, Chief Execu�ve O fficer of N exus, said: "F Y24 has been a year of
progress for Nexus Infrastructure, demonstra�ng resilience in a challenging market. We have focussed on delivering on our core
strategic objec�ves and have seen progression across all, strengthening our founda�ons and posi�oning us well for future
growth.
 
"The significant improvements in Tamdown's margins and the expansion of our order book reflect the hard work and
opera�onal discipline of the team. Looking ahead, we're excited about the opportuni�es presented by our recent acquisi�on of
Coleman Construc�on & U�li�es, which opens new high-poten�al sectors. W ith momentum building and a more posi�ve
outlook for the housing sector recovery, we are optimistic about the year ahead and confident in our continued success."
 
Financial summary

·     Revenue in l ine with market expecta)ons at £56.7m (2023: £88.7m), reflec)ng subdued market
conditions  in the housebui lding sector.

·     O rder book at the year-end grew to £51.6m (2023: £46.0m) despite weakness  in the housebui lding
market.

·     Operating loss  of £2.2m (2023: £8.4m loss) including exceptional  i tems of £0.3m (2023: £0.6m).
·     Strong balance sheet with the Group's  cash at £12.8m (2023: £14.6m), pos i)oning the Group for

the market upturn.
·     Net assets  robust at £30.0m (2023: £33.0m).
·     Loss  per share (bas ic) of 30.6p (F Y 2023: earnings  239.0p (including the sale of Tri Connex and

eSmart Networks  and the return of capital  to shareholders), F Y 2023: loss  per share from
continuing operations  (bas ic) of 34.52p).

·     P roposed final  dividend of 2.0p, a  total  of 3.0p for the year. D ividend level  maintained to con)nue
returning value to shareholders  (2023: 3.0p).

 
Strategic highlights

·     Strengthened and expanded rela)onships  with na)onal  housing developers  on large mul)-phase
schemes, often lasting between five and 10 years .

·     Focused on opera)onal  discipl ine and management of costs  at Tamdown, whi lst maintaining high
qual i ty customer service, resulting in s igni ficant improvement in Tamdown's  gross  margins .

·     Post-period acquis i)on of Coleman Construc)on & U)l i)es  Limited ("Coleman") del ivers  on a key
strategic pi l lar and divers i fies  the Group into water, ra i l , highways, rivers  & marine sectors .

Outlook for FY25 and beyond
The UK  housebui lding sector, benefiEng from the Government's  ini)a)ves  to resolve the long-term undersupply of new
homes, i s  poised for recovery. Tamdown has  con)nued to focus  on growing customer rela)onships , bui lding on i ts  exis)ng
reputa)on for high qual i ty service, driven by i ts  experience in the del ivery of mul)-phase, complex projects . The Board is
therefore confident that Tamdown is  wel l  placed to take advantage of the market upturn.
 
The addi)on of Coleman to the Group post-period opens new doors  to new high-poten)al  sectors  that complement Nexus '
exper)se. By del ivering on the strategy to divers i fy, the acquis i)on eases  Nexus ' rel iance on the typical ly cycl ical  hous ing
market, and introduces  Nexus  to new, res i l ient, high growth infrastructure sectors .
 
The Board wi l l  continue to review further divers i fication options  in FY25.
 
 
For more information, please contact: 

Nexus Infrastructure plc via  Alma 

Charles  Sweeney, Chief Executive Officer nexus@almastrategic.com

Dawn Hi l lman, Chief Financial  Officer 

Zeus (Nominated Adviser and Sole Broker) Tel : 020 3829 5000 

Hugh Morgan, James Hornigold (Investment Banking) 

Dominic King (Corporate Broking)

Alma Strategic Communications Tel : 0203 405 0205 

Justine James nexus@almastrategic.com  

Hannah Campbel l  

Wi l l  Merison



Wil l  Merison

  
 
Notes to Editors 
 
Nexus  is  a  leading provider of civi l  engineering infrastructure solu)ons through i ts  two subs idiaries : Tamdown Group
Limited ("Tamdown") and Coleman Construction & Uti l i ties  Limited ("Coleman").
 
Tamdown provides  a  range of civi l  engineering and infrastructure solu)ons to the UK  housebui lding sector, with
opera)ons focused on the South-East of England and London. I t has  an establ ished market-leading pos i)on, having been in
operation for over 48 years .
 
Coleman del ivers  civi l  engineering and bui lding projects  in the water, ra i l , highways  and rivers  & marine sectors . S ince i ts
foundation in 2000, the bus iness  has  grown based on a reputation for qual i ty of service and customer satis faction.
  
www.nexus-infrastructure.com

 
Chairman's statement
 
Overview of the year  
The Group del ivered a steady overal l  performance in F Y24, despite the ongoing macroeconomic and housebui lding industry
headwinds. W ith condi)ons expected to improve in 2025, the Group has  worked hard to pos i)on i tsel f for the market
upturn which, a longs ide divers ifica)on into further sectors  of cri)cal  UK  infrastructure, provides  the Board with
confidence for the year ahead.  
 
We have maintained our close rela)onships  with our loyal  and long-standing customer base and are proud of the high
levels  of service that we have del ivered to our cl ients . As  ever, Tamdown con)nues to be recognised for i ts  rel iabi l i ty and
experience in the del ivery of complex, multi -phase developments , ensuring we remain wel l  placed to win new contracts .  
 
The Board is  confident that a  recovery in the housebui lding sector is  expected. Spurred on by the change in government and
the eas ing of wider economic pressures , Tamdown is  wel l  pos itioned to capital ise on this  recovery.
 
Post-period end, the acquis i)on of Coleman marks  an exci)ng moment in the evolu)on of Nexus, strengthening the Group
by introducing new, growing, and less  cycl ical  sectors . The acquis i)on, which del ivers  on a key aspect of our growth
strategy, further cements  our confidence in the year ahead.  
 
Board and employees  
I n August, aKer 30 years  of dedicated service, Mike Morris  stepped down from the Board. We thank Mike for a l l  his
dedica)on and contribu)on to the bus iness  over such a long length of )me and wish him al l  the best with his  future
endeavours .  
 
A key factor in Nexus ' success  con)nues to be our team of ski l led, driven and dedicated employees  working across  the
Group. We remain commiLed to a iding the profess ional  growth of our workforce and ensuring Nexus  remains  a  plaMorm
for successful  career development.   
 
Dividend 
Nexus  con)nues to operate with a  robust balance sheet, with net cash of £12.8m at year-end. The Board intends to
recommend the payment of a  final  dividend of 2p per share in l ine with F Y23.  This  gives  a  ful l  year dividend of 3p per
share.
 
Stakeholder engagement
The Board recognises  the importance of stakeholder engagement to the long-term success  and sustainabi l i ty of our
bus iness . The Group is  commiLed to developing effec)ve dia logue and rela)onships  with a l l  s takeholder groups and the
Board continual ly develops  our bus iness  us ing learnings  from these interactions.  
 
We remain focused on our miss ion to be recognised as  the leading provider of essen)al  infrastructure solu)ons in the UK ,
by del ivering outstanding performance through a focus  on del ivery, customer service and divers i fication.

Sustainability
At the heart of our purpose, Bui lding Bright Futures , i s  a  commitment to sustainabi l i ty - for our people, communi)es, and
the planet. Nexus  and our people con)nue to chal lenge assump)ons across  our opera)ons and find beLer ways  to ensure
qual i ty del ivery whi le a lso improving our sustainabi l i ty as  a  bus iness .
 
O ur dedica)on to Health & Safety was  recognised by the Royal  Society for the P reven)on of Accidents  (RoS PA) with
Tamdown receiving i ts  15 thconsecu)ve Gold Award resul)ng in an O rder of Dis)nc)on Award. P hase 2 of Tamdown's
Behavioural  Safety Programme began in May 2024 and was wel l  received by both employees  and customers. 
 
Development of a l l  our staff is  important to us  and during the year we supported the Tamdown Finance Director to achieve
Chartered Director status  and our s i te managers  to enhance their IT ski l l s .
 
We con)nued our wel lbeing ini)a)ves  to support our people, as  wel l  as  our volunteering scheme and fundrais ing efforts
to support the communities  we operate within.
 
We see sustainabi l i ty as  a  journey for our bus iness  a longs ide our customers  and suppl iers , and i t i s  a  journey we are ful ly
committed to. 
 
Summary and outlook 
Despite a  chal lenging backdrop across  the UK  housing market, the Group del ivered a good performance in F Y24, working
hard to strengthen margins  and maintain a  strong balance sheet. I t i s  pleas ing to see the progress  that has  been made on
del ivering on our strategic objectives . 
 
We look to the year ahead with bel ief that a  recovery in the housebui lding sector is  on the horizon and, when market
confidence returns, Tamdown is  wel l  poised to benefi t, spurred on by the government's  ambitious  housebui lding targets .  
 
Post period, the acquis i)on of Coleman provides  further confidence in the outlook for Nexus, presen)ng an expanding
opportunity for the Group, through divers ifica)on, and we look forward to seeing the pos i)ve impact i t wi l l  have on Nexus
in the years  ahead
 
Richard Kilner
Non-Executive Chairman
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CEO Statement
 
Overview
I n F Y24, we took pos i)ve steps  in our strategic objec)ves, despite a  chal lenging market backdrop. O ur primary focus  has
been on three key areas: to grow with our customers, to expand our market, and to strengthen financial  del ivery. I n a l l
areas  i t i s  pleas ing to see that we made meaningful  progress .
 
W hi lst the pace of the recovery of the housebui lding sector has  been s lower than we an)cipated, there are s igns  that
momentum is  once again bui lding, catalysed by the change in government and macroeconomic improvements . We remain
confident that a  s ignificant recovery in the housebui lding sector is  inevitable, and Tamdown wi l l  be wel l  placed to
capital ise on the upturn when i t happens.
 
During the year, Tamdown con)nued to focus  on opera)ng discipl ine and the management of costs  whi lst del ivering a
high-qual i ty service to i ts  cl ients . The team's  hard work and innova)ve thinking further improved produc)vity, resul)ng in
a strengthening of gross  margins  of 13.7% (2023: 5.8%) despite market pressures. The bus iness  remains  wel l  pos i)oned for
growth, with an order book of £51.6m (2023: £46.0m) at year-end. Post-period end, Tamdown was awarded further work
with a  total  value of £15.9m.
 
O veral l , Group revenues for F Y24 were £56.7m (2023: £88.7m) with a  reduced opera)ng loss  of £2.2m (2023: loss  of £8.4m)
including exceptional  i tems of £0.3m (2023: £0.6m).
 

Nexus  has  a  robust balance sheet with cash and cash equivalents  of £12.8m at the FY24 year end (2023: £14.6m).

 
Post year end, Nexus  acquired Coleman Construc)on & U)l i)es  Limited (Coleman), a civi l  engineering & construc)on
business  with experience in several  key sectors  including water, ra i l , highways, and rivers  and marine, for an ini)al  cash
considera)on of £3.08m on a cash and debt free bas is  (total  aggregate cons idera)on of up to £5.38m over two years).
Expanding the Group's  market through divers ifica)on has  been a key pi l lar of Nexus ' s trategy and the acquis i)on of
Coleman wi l l  provide future growth opportuni)es  outs ide of the Group's  exis)ng core sector of res iden)al  housebui lding.
Coleman offers  services  in sectors  which are cri)cal  to the UK 's  na)onal  infrastructure, driven by cl imate change,
environment protec)on, and shiKs  in societal  needs. These sectors  have mul)-decade horizons  and are largely unaffected
by short-term economic pressures.
 
Strategy
Nexus made progress  on i ts  core strategic objec)ves  in the year, a l l  of which wi l l  bring benefits  to the Group in the years
ahead:
 
Growing With Our Customers
Through qual i ty of service and aLen)on to detai l , we have con)nued to grow rela)onships  with the na)onal  housing
developers  on large mul)-phase schemes which oKen last between five and ten years . Examples  include developments  for
the UK's  largest housebui lders , such as  Taylor Wimpey, Bel lway, Vistry and Pers immon.
 
Expanding Our Market
Post-period we completed the acquis i)on of Coleman Construc)on & U)l i)es  Limited. The acquis i)on introduces  Nexus  to
new high poten)al  sectors , including water, ra i l , highways, and rivers  and marine, which are less  exposed to short-term
economic pressures. Many of Coleman's  projects  are related to long-term frameworks, such as  the AM P  programmes (Asset
Management Periods) in the water sector. Nexus  wi l l  support Coleman in enhancing and expanding i ts  opera)ons. The
Group wi l l  continue to review other divers i fication options  and wi l l  evaluate future opportunities  in a  cons idered manner.
 
Focus on Financial Delivery
Despite the prevai l ing difficult condi)ons in the housebui lding sector during F Y24, Tamdown con)nued to focus  on
opera)ng discipl ine and the management of costs  whi lst del ivering a  high-qual i ty service to i ts  customers. This  resulted in
a s ignificant improvement to Tamdown's  gross  margins  (as  noted below) and the bus iness  is  now wel l  placed to benefit
from the widely-expected upturn in the housebui lding sector.
 
Operational update: Tamdown
Tamdown provides  a  range of essen)al  civi l  engineering and infrastructure solu)ons to the UK  housebui lding sector. These
services  include earthworks , bui lding highways, substructures  and basements , and instal l ing sustainable drainage
systems. I t has  an establ ished market-leading pos i)on having been in opera)on for over 48 years . I t i s  par)cularly
recognised for i ts  experience and capabi l i)es  in the safe del ivery of large, complex, mul)-phase developments . I t has  a
strong brand and a loyal  customer base.
 
Health and safety is  given the highest priori ty. Systems and procedures  are regularly reviewed, to ensure they are robust
and compl iant whi lst easy to fol low. The competency, awareness  and behaviours  of individuals  are enhanced through
training and development programmes.
 
Tamdown's  health and safety performance was recognised by the Royal  Society for the P reven)on of Accidents  (RoS PA),
receiving a  Gold Award for the 15th consecutive year, together with the RoSPA Pres ident's  Award.
 
Tamdown's  Accident I ncidence Rate (AI R) for the year was  215 (2023: 122). By comparison, the Health and Safety
Execu)ve's  figures, publ ished in November 2024, stated that the equivalent average for the UK  construc)on industry
overal l  in 2023/24 was 306 (2023: 296).
 
Tamdown paid par)cular aLen)on to opera)ng discipl ine and the management of costs  in paral lel  to maintaining high
levels  of customer service. Example ini)a)ves  include an improvement in planning and resource forecas)ng, the use of
systems to efficiently manage workforce training records  and the introduc)on of vehicle telema)cs  to help driver
awareness  and reduce environmental  impacts .
 
In combination, these and other ini tiatives  resulted in a  strengthening of gross  margins  to 13.7% (2023: 5.8%).
 
During the year, Tamdown secured new work from several  major developers . At year end Tamdown's  order book was
£51.6m, (2023: £46.0m), a  12% increase on the previous  year. Post-period end Tamdown was awarded new work with a
total  value of £15.9m.
 
People
I n August, Mike Morris  stepped down from the Board aKer more than 30 years . O n behalf of everyone across  the Group, I
thank Mike for his  leadership, support and for his  cons iderable contribu)on to the evolu)on and success  of the bus iness .



thank Mike for his  leadership, support and for his  cons iderable contribu)on to the evolu)on and success  of the bus iness .
We al l  wish Mike the very best for the future.
 
I  extend a warm welcome to those new col leagues  who joined the Group over the past year. I  look forward to working with
you as  we continue to bui ld for the future.
 
Market update and outlook
I t was  a  chal lenging year for the UK  housing market, with the rate of recovery in the housebui lding sector s lower than
an)cipated. However, the wider macroeconomic pressures  which have been affec)ng the sector for so long have begun to
abate and this , coupled with the promises  of support made by Government, have improved sector confidence in a  market
recovery during in 2025.
 
The acquis i)on of Coleman post-period end means Nexus  wi l l  in the future be less  exposed to the cycl ical  pressures  of a
s ingle market sector and wi l l  have opportuni)es  to be involved in  other sectors  key to UK  na)onal  infrastructure. These
sectors  have fundamental  drivers  such as  cl imate change, environment protec)on, shiKs  in societal  needs, and
improvements  to energy securi ty, and therefore are less  vulnerable to short-term economic fluctuations.
 
Final ly, I  would l ike to extend my gra)tude to each and every team member across  Nexus  for the dedica)on, hard work and
res i l ience shown during a  chal lenging year. There is  much to look forward to as  a  result of your efforts  - so, thank you for
al l  that you have done.
 
Charles Sweeney
Chief Executive Officer
 

CFO REVIEW
I  am pleased to report that F Y24 del ivered an improved financial  performance with an increase in the gross  profit margin
and reduced overheads, resul)ng in a  reduc)on in the loss . W hi lst there was a  s ignificant reduc)on in revenue, due to the
continued chal lenging conditions  in the housing market, the improvement in these key financial  metrics  places  Tamdown in
a good pos i)on to benefit from the an)cipated recovery in the housing market. The acquis i)on of Coleman in O ctober
2024, expands our markets  providing new revenue streams and enhancing value for the Group.
 
Our continued strong pos itive cash pos ition and balance sheet means the board is  recommending a final  dividend payment
of 2.0p per share, in l ine with 2023.
 
Revenue £56.7m -36%
 
2024 56.7
2023 88.7
2022 98.4
 
Revenue and revenue growth track our performance against our strategic a im to grow the Group through suppor)ng our
customers  and expanding our markets .
 
Revenue in F Y24 comes from the res iden)al  housebui lding sector and total led £56.7m. The year was  impacted by the low
levels  of houses  being bui l t with the pace of recovery not happening as  markets  had expected. The uncertainty created by
the general  elec)on and s lower than expected reduc)on in interest rates  were contribu)ng factors  affec)ng consumer
confidence and affordabi l i ty of buying a  house.
 
Addi)onal  revenue of £1.8m came from the seLlement of a  cla im against a  suppl ier for damages caused by the supply of
faulty services .
 
Gross Profit £7.7m  +30.5%
 
2024 7.7
2023 5.9
2022 9.9
 
Gross  profi t increased by 30.5% including the one-off cla im of £1.8m. Underlying gross  profit from housebui lding ac)vi)es
was £7.7m (F Y 2023: £5.9m). The housebui lding gross  margin was  13.7%. This  i s  a  further increase from the hal f year gross
margin (H1 2024 : 13.5%) for Tamdown and demonstrates  the con)nuing improvement in del ivery. Costs  have been )ghtly
control led with further cost saving measures  being implemented.
 
For broader context, the compara)ve 2023 margin was  impacted by i lke Homes going into administra)on and the
associated write-off.
 
Loss before tax and exceptionals -£2.2m
 
2024 (2.2)
2023 (7.7)
2022 (0.3)
 
The loss  before tax (excluding excep)onals) was  £2.5m (F Y 2023 £7.9m). Excep)onals  of £0.3m (F Y 2023: £0.6m) related to
a further cost cuEng exercise carried out during the year. The improvement in the gross  margin contributed to the
reduc)on in the loss  during the year. Nexus  administra)ve expenses  reduced to £1.8m (F Y 2023 £2.4m) reflec)ng the
review undertaken in FY23.
 
Loss per share 30.6p
 
2024 (30.6)
2023 239.0
2022 6.0
 
Tracking the after-tax earnings  relative to the average number of shares  in issue provides  a  monitor on shareholder value.
 
Loss  per share (bas ic) in F Y 2024 was 30.6p (F Y 2023: earnings  239.0p). This  includes  the sale of Tri Connex and eSmart
Networks  and the return of capital  to shareholders . FY 2023 loss  per share from continuing operations  (bas ic) was  34.52p.
 
Proposed dividend per share (p)
 
Total dividend per share 3.0p
 
2024 3.0
2023 3.0
2022 1.0
 
Tracking the total  dividend per share declared for each financial  year provides  a  monitor on the return achieved for



Tracking the total  dividend per share declared for each financial  year provides  a  monitor on the return achieved for
shareholders .
 
Nexus  con)nues to operate with a  strong balance sheet, with net cash of £12.8m at the year end. The Board intends to
recommend a final  dividend of 2.0p per share. This  wi l l  give a  total  dividend of 3.0p per share, in l ine with 2023.
 
Working Capital
 
Cash generated from opera)ons was £1.4m.Trade receivables  reduced to £20.6m (F Y 2023: £23.3m) with overdue
receivables  reducing to £7.8m (F Y 2023: £9.7m). Tamdown con)nues to improve this  pos i)on and have recruited a
Commercial  Director to ass ist with this . 
 
Trade payables  were £12.0m (FY 2023: £13.7m) reflecting the reduced revenue levels .
 
Cash £12.8m -12.3%
 
2024 12.8
2023 14.6
2022 4.6
 
Tracking the cash balance monitors  the convers ion of profits  into cash, ensuring that cash is  avai lable for reinvestment
and suppor)ng del ivery of the strategy. O ur cash balance has  meant we were able to manage the impact of i lke Homes
going into administra)on in mid-2023 owing £2.9m. O ur cash wi l l  support our growth ambi)ons with sufficient balances
to support our working capital  requirements  and potentia l  future acquis i tions.
 
The Group does  not have any debt faci l i ties  in place.
 
Total Assets £29.9m  -9%
 
2024 29.9
2023 33.0
2022 34.1
 
Tracking the Group's  net assets  monitors  the Group's  financial  s trength and stabi l i ty. The movement in net assets  reflects
the loss  in the year of £2.7m and payment of dividends total l ing £0.3m.
 
Order book £51.6m  +12%
 
2024 51.6
2023 46.0
2022 95.5
 
The tracking of the order book, being the amount of secured work yet to be recorded as  revenue, provides  vis ibi l i ty on
expected future revenue against the strategic a im to grow the bus iness .
 
The order book has  increased in the year to £51.6m (2023: £46.0m), and post year end, further work was secured of £15.9m.
 
Acquisition
 
Post year end, on 29 O ctober 2024, Nexus  I nfrastructure plc completed the acquis i)on of Coleman Construc)on & U)l i)es,
a  construc)on and civi l  engineering bus iness  with experience in water, ra i l , u)l i)es  and other infrastructure services  for a
maximum considera)on of £5.38m. The ini)al  cons idera)on was made from our cash balance and is  constructed as
fol lows:                                                                                                   
 

£m
Cash 3.1
Contingent cons ideration   0.2
Settlement of inter company balances  and loans 0.8
Deferred cash cons ideration to a  maximum of 1.3
Total  maximum purchase cons ideration 5.4
 
The acquis i)on al igns  to the Nexus  strategic objec)ve of divers i fying into addi)onal  key sectors  cri)cal  to the UK
infrastructure.
 
Outlook
 
UK  Government pledges  to increase the number of houses  being bui l t through planning reforms and targets  for counci ls ,
a longs ide reducing interest rates  (i f s lower than ini)al ly expected) wi l l  help to improve confidence in the housebui lding
sector during 2025. Tamdown is  wel l  placed to be involved as  the housebui lders  increase their volumes.
 
The acquis i)on of Coleman provides  divers ifica)on of revenue streams, with the opportuni)es  in the water sector from
AMP8 and the work being carried out in the rai l  sector, resulting in the Group having less  rel iance on the housing sector.
 
Nexus  subs idiaries  are wel l  placed to del iver over the coming year.
 
Dawn Hillman
Chief Financial  Officer
 
 

 
 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
for the year ended 30 September 2024

 

2024 2023
Note £'000 £'000

Continuing operations  
Revenue 4 56,713 88,691
Cost of sales (49,049) (82,719)
Gross profit 7,664 5,972
Administrative expenses (9,640) (10,779)
Impairment loss 20 (1,789) (2,935)
Other Income 5 1,819 -
Operating loss before exceptional items (1,946) (7,742)
Exceptional  i tems 8 (279)  (645)
Operating loss (2,225) (8,387)



Operating loss (2,225) (8,387)
Finance income 11 151 447
Finance expense 11 (690) (599)
Loss before tax (2,764) (8,540)
Taxation 12 - 46
Loss from continuing operations (2,764) (8,494)
Discontinued operations  
Profi t from discontinued operations  (after tax) 21 - 67,292
(Loss)/Profit and total comprehensive (loss)/income for the year
attributable to equity holders of the parent

(2,764) 58,799

Earnings/(losses) per share (p per share)  
Basic (p per share) - total  operations 14 (30.6) 238.96
Di luted (p per share) - total  operations 14 (30.6) 238.96
Bas ic (p per share) - continuing operations 14 (30.6) (34.52)
Di luted (p per share) - continuing operations 14 (30.6) (34.52)
Bas ic (p per share) - discontinued operations 14 - 273.48
Di luted (p per share) - discontinued operations 14 - 273.48
 

The re  a re  no re cogni s e d ga i ns  a nd l os s e s  othe r tha n thos e  s hown i n the  i ncome  s ta te me nt a bove  a nd the re fore  no
s e pa ra te  s ta te me nt of othe r compre he ns i ve  i ncome  ha s  be e n pre s e nte d.

 

 

 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
as at 30 September 2024

 

Group Group Company Compa ny
As  re s ta te d

2024 2023 2024 2023
Note £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Non-current assets
Prope rty, pl a nt a nd e qui pme nt 15 5,079 5,377 60 405
Ri ght of us e  a s s e ts 16 10,273 11,435 32 42
Goodwi l l 17 2,361 2,361 - -
Othe r re ce i va bl e 20  6,329 6,278
Inve s tme nts  i n s ubs i di a ri e s 18 - - 20,545 20,545
Total non-current assets 17,713 19,173 26,966 20,992
Current assets
Inve ntori e s 19 - 44 - 44
Tra de  a nd othe r re ce i va bl e s 20 21,836 24,135 374  453
Contra ct a s s e ts 4 2,647 2,784 - -
Ca s h a nd ca s h e qui va l e nts 25 12,801 14,626 9,383 11,797
Total current assets 37,284 41,589 9,757  18,572
Total assets 54,997 60,763 36,723 39,564
Current liabilities
Tra de  a nd othe r pa ya bl e s 22 13,568 15,540 701 1,464
Contra ct l i a bi l i ti e s 4 266 552 - -
Le a s e  l i a bi l i ti e s 16 1,531 1,826 9 10
Corpora ti on ta x l i a bi l i ty 12 18 - -
Total current liabilities 15,377 17,936 710 1,474
Non-current liabilities
Le a s e  l i a bi l i ti e s 16 9,638 9,818 23 32
De fe rre d ta x l i a bi l i ti e s 23 - - - -
Total non-current liabilities 9,638 9,818 23 32
Total liabilities 25,015 27,754 733 1,507
Net assets 29,982 33,010 35,990 38,060
Equity attributable to equity holders of the Company
Sha re  ca pi ta l 24 181 181 181 181
Sha re  pre mi um a ccount 9,419 9,419 9,419 9,419
Re ta i ne d e a rni ngs 20,382 23,410 26,390 28,460
Total equity 29,982 33,010 35,990 38,060
 

Retained earnings of the Company

The  l os s  of the  Compa ny i n the  fi na nci a l  ye a r a mounte d to £1,799,000 (2023: profi t £70,577,000).

 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY   
for the year ended 30 September 2024

 

Sha re
Sha re pre mi um Re ta i ne d

ca pi ta l  a ccount e a rni ngs Tota l
Note £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Equity as at 1 October 2022 911 9,419 23,810 34,140
Profi t for the  pe ri od - - 58,799 58,799
Total comprehensive income for the period - - 58,799 58,799
Transactions with owners
Di vi de nd pa i d 13 - - (90) (90)
Sha re  buyba ck (743) - (59,808) (60,551)
Sha re -ba s e d pa yme nts 28 - - 700 700
Is s ue  of s ha re  ca pi ta l 13 - - 13

(730) - (59,198) (59,929)



(730) - (59,198) (59,929)
Equity as at 30 September 2023 181 9,419 23,410 33,010
Los s  for the  pe ri od - - (2,764) (2,764)
Total comprehensive (loss) for the period - - (2,764) (2,764)
Transactions with owners
Di vi de nd pa i d 13 - - (271) (271)

- - (271) (271)
Equity as at 30 September 2024 181 9,419 20,284 29,882
 

 
COMPANY STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 
for the year ended 30 September 2024

 

Sha re
Sha re pre mi um Re ta i ne d

ca pi ta l  a ccount e a rni ngs Tota l
Note £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Equity as at 1 October 2022 911 9,419 17,081 27,411
Profi t for the  pe ri od - - 70,577 70,577
Total comprehensive income for the period - - 70,577 70,577
Transactions with owners
Di vi de nd pa i d 13 - - (90) (90)
Sha re  buyba ck (743) - (59,808) (60,551)
Sha re -ba s e d pa yme nts 28 - - 700 700
Is s ue  of s ha re  ca pi ta l 13 - 13

(730) - (59,198) (59,929)
Equity as at 30 September 2023 181 9,419 28,460 38,060
Los s  for the  pe ri od - - (1,799) (1,799)
Total comprehensive (loss) for the period - - (1,799) (1,799)
Transactions with owners
Di vi de nd pa i d 13 - - (271) (271)

- - (271) (271)
Equity as at 30 September 2024 181 9,419 26,390 35,990
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS      
for the year ended 30 September 2024

 

Group Group Company Compa ny
As  re s ta te d

2024 2023 2024 2023
Note £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Cash flow from operating activities   
(Los s )/profi t be fore  ta x from conti nui ng a nd
di s conti nue d ope ra ti ons

(2,764) 58,753 (1,799) 70,577

Adjusted by:  
Ga i n on s a l e  of s ubs i di a ri e s 21 - (67,292) - -
Profi t on di s pos a l  of prope rty, pl a nt a nd
e qui pme nt - owne d

9 (153) (573) - -

Sha re -ba s e d pa yme nts 28 - 700 - 700
Fi na nce  e xpe ns e 11 (690) (599) (62) 5
Fi na nce  i ncome 11 151 447 126 371
De pre ci a ti on of prope rty, pl a nt a nd e qui pme nt -
owne d

15 745 726 127 171

De pre ci a ti on of prope rty, pl a nt a nd e qui pme nt -
ri ght of us e

16 1,882 1,618 9 1

Operating profit before working capital changes 249 (5,917) (1,727) 71,082
Worki ng ca pi ta l  a djus tme nts :  
De cre a s e /(i ncre a s e ) i n othe r re ce i va bl e s  (51)
De cre a s e /(i ncre a s e ) i n tra de  a nd othe r
re ce i va bl e s

20 1,443 6,949 336 (85)

De cre a s e /(i ncre a s e ) i n contra ct a s s e ts 4 138 (91) - -
De cre a s e /(Incre a s e ) i n i nve ntory 19 44 (744) 44 (1)
(De cre a s e )/i ncre a s e  i n tra de  a nd othe r
pa ya bl e s

22 (1,145)  (7,398) (1,018) (4,738)

(De cre a s e )/i ncre a s e  i n contra ct l i a bi l i ti e s 4 (261) (59) - -
Cash (used in)/generated from operating activities 469 (7,260) (2,421) 66,258
Inte re s t pa i d 11 (690) (599) (62) -
Ta xa ti on pa i d - 242 - -
Ne t ca s h (us e d i n)/ge ne ra te d from ope ra ti ng
a cti vi ti e s

(221) (7,617) (2,483) 66,258

Cash flow from investing activities  
Purcha s e  of prope rty, pl a nt a nd e qui pme nt -
owne d

15 (801) (759) - (301)

Proce e ds  from di s pos a l  of prope rty, pl a nt a nd
e qui pme nt - owne d

15 514 1,408 227 -

Sa l e  of di s conti nue d ope ra ti ons 21 - 60,168 - -
Loa n to re l a te d pa rty  _ (1,000) _
Re pa yme nt of l oa n from re l a te d pa rty  _ 1,000 _
Inte re s t re ce i ve d 11 151 447 126 371
Net cash generated from/(used) in investing
activities

(136) 61,264 353 3,069



Cash flow from financing activities  
Di vi de nd pa yme nt 13 (271) (90) (271) (90)
Sha re  buyba ck 24 - (60,551) - (60,551)
Pri nci pa l  e l e me nts  of l e a s e  re pa yme nts 25 (1,196) (2,560) (13) (1)
Ne t proce e ds  from the  i s s ue  of s ha re  ca pi ta l - 13 - 13
Net cash (used in)/generated from financing
activities

(1,467) (63,188) (284) (60,629)

Net change in cash and cash equivalents (1,825) (9,542) (2,414) 8,698
Ca s h a nd ca s h e qui va l e nts  a t the  be gi nni ng of
the  ye a r

14,626 24,168 11,797 3,099

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 12,801 14,626 9,383 11,797
 

Ca s h a nd ca s h e qui va l e nts  compri s e  ca s h a t ba nk.

 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 30 September 2024
 
1. Accounting policies
General information
The principal  ac)vity of Nexus  I nfrastructure plc ("the Company") and i ts  subs idiaries  (together "the Group") i s  the
provis ion of essentia l  infrastructure solutions  to the UK housebui lding and commercial  sectors .
 
Those services  comprise:
 

·      Civi l  engineering & construction contracts .
 
The principal  trading subs idiaries  are Tamdown Group Limited, Tamdown Services  Limited, Tamdown P lant Hire Limited
and Nexus  Park Limited.
 
The subs idiaries  Tri Connex Limited and eSmart Networks  Limited were class ified as  discon)nued during the year to 30
September 2023 due to the sale of these subs idiaries  in February 2023. Their results  have been presented within the income
statement as  discontinued operations.
 
The Company is  a  publ ic l imited company (by shares) which is  l i s ted on the Alterna)ve I nvestment Market ("AI M") of the
London Stock Exchange and is  incorporated and registered in England and Wales  under the Companies  Act 2006 and
domici led in the United K ingdom. The address  of the registered office is  Nexus  Park, Avenue East, Skyl ine 120, Great Notley,
Braintree, Essex, CM77 7AL.
 
The registered number of the Company is  05635505.
 
Basis of preparation
The consol idated and Company financial  s tatements  are for the year ended 30 September 2024. The consol idated financial
statements  have been prepared in accordance with UK-adopted I nterna)onal  Accoun)ng Standards  and with the
requirements  of the Companies  Act 2006 as  appl icable to companies  reporting under those standards.
 
The consol idated and Company financial  s tatements  have been prepared under the historical  cost conven)on and are
presented in sterl ing, rounded to the nearest thousand except where indicated otherwise.
 
The accounting pol icies  have been appl ied cons istently, other than where new pol icies  have been adopted.
 
The prepara)on of financial  s tatements  in conformity with UK-adopted I nterna)onal  Accoun)ng Standards  requires
management to make es)mates  and assump)ons that affect the appl ica)on of pol icies  and reported amounts  of assets
and l iabi l i)es , income and expenses. The es)mates  and associated assump)ons are based on historical  experience and
various  other factors  that are bel ieved to be reasonable under the ci rcumstances, the results  of which form the bas is  of
carrying values  of assets  and l iabi l i)es  that are not readi ly apparent from other sources. Actual  results  may differ from
these estimates.
 
The es)mates  and underlying assump)ons are reviewed on an ongoing bas is . Revis ions  to accoun)ng es)mates  are
recognised in the year in which the es)mate is  revised i f the revis ion affect only that year, or in the year of the revis ion and
future years  i f the revis ion affects  both current and future years .
 
For a  summary of cri tical  accounting estimates  and judgements  please see note 2 to the financial  s tatements .
 
The financial  s tatements  for the year ended 30 September 2024 for Nexus  Park Limited, Tamdown P lant Hire Limited and
Tamdown Services  Limited have been exempted from audit under Sec)on 479A of the Companies  Act 2006 by way of
parental  guarantee from Nexus  Infrastructure plc.
 
Company results
The Company has  taken advantage of the exemp)on al lowed under Sec)on 408 of the Companies  Act and has  not presented
its  own statement of comprehensive income. The Group loss  for the year includes  a  loss  for the Company of £1,799,000
(2023: Profi t £70,577,000).
 
Basis of consolidation
Subsidiaries  are a l l  en))es (including structured en))es) over which the Group has  control . The Group controls  an en)ty
where the Group is  exposed to, or has  rights  to, variable returns  from i ts  involvement with the en)ty and has  the abi l i ty to
affect those returns  through i ts  power to direct the activi ties  of the enti ty.
 
The consol idated financial  s tatements  present the results  of the Company and i ts  subs idiaries  as  i f they form a s ingle
en)ty. I nter-company transac)ons and balances  are therefore el iminated in ful l . The results  of acquired opera)ons are
included in the consol idated statement of comprehensive income from the date on which control  i s  obtained. They are
deconsol idated from the date on which control  ceases.
 
Going concern
I n determining the appropriate bas is  of prepara)on of these financial  s tatements , the Directors  are required to cons ider
whether the Group can con)nue in opera)onal  existence. Budgets  for the two-year period to September 2026 have been
prepared and approved by the Board; they reflect a  cautious  view on the trading outlook based on the current market. When
producing the budgets  the Group cons idered the government plans  to increase housebui lding, overal l  improvements  in the
housebui lding sector and the impact these have on revenues. The Group also cons idered the gross  margin improvement in
Tamdown and cost reduction measures  taken.
 
These budgets  were then subject to a  range of sens i)vi)es  including a  severe but plaus ible scenario together with
mitigating actions. Changes  to the principal  assumptions  included:
 

·      a reduction in work secured of approximately 20%;
·      a reduction in revenue del ivered from order book of approximately 10%; and



·      a reduction in revenue del ivered from order book of approximately 10%; and
·      a reduction in gross  profi t of approximately 2% for contracts  in the pipel ine

 
Based on the results  of the analys is  undertaken, the Directors  have a reasonable expecta)on that the Group has  adequate
resources  to meet i ts  l iabi l i)es  as  they arise for at least 12 months  from the approval  of these financial  s tatements , and
consequently, the Directors  have adopted the going concern bas is  of accoun)ng in the prepara)on of these financial
statements .
 
New and amended standards adopted by the Group
The Group has  cons idered amended standards  which apply to the financial  period and cons ider that there have been no
new standards, interpreta)ons or amendments  to accounts  standards  which the Group needed to cons ider applying for
their annual  report period commencing 1 October 2023. The amendments  the Group cons idered are:
 

·      Definition of Accounting Estimates  - amendments  to IAS 8;
·      International  Tax Reform - Pi l lar Tow Model  Rules  - amendments  to IAS 12;
·      Deferred Tax related to Assets  and Liabi l i ties  aris ing from a Single Transaction - amendments  to IAS12; and
·      Disclosure of Accounting Pol icies  - amendments  to IAS 1 and IFRS practice Statement 2;

 
Standards, interpretations and amendments in issue but not yet effective
Certain new accoun)ng standards  and interpreta)ons have been publ ished that are not mandatory for 30 September 2024
repor)ng periods  and have not been early adopted by the Group. These standards  are not expected to have a materia l
impact on the Group in the current or future reporting periods.
The accounting standards  and interpretations  which the Group are cons idering are :

·      Lease l iabi l i ty in a  sale and leaseback transaction - amendments  to IFRS 16
·      Class i fication of l iabi l i ties  as  current or non-current - amendments  to IAS 1
·      Non-current l iabi l i ties  with covenants  - amendments  to IAS 1
·      Suppl ier finance arrangement - amendments

 
Revenue recognition
Revenue represents  the fa ir value of cons idera)on received or receivable for goods and services  provided to external
customers, net of trade discounts  and excluding value add tax and s imi lar sales-based taxes.
 
The services  provided by the Group are:
 

·      contract revenue from Civi l  Engineering and construction contracts .
 
I n l ine with I F RS 15, the Group recognises  revenue based on the appl ica)on of the standard's  principle-based 'five step'
model  to the Group's  contracts  with customers  us ing the input approach. The revenue is  recognised on the bas is  of direct
measurement of the value to the customer of the goods transferred to the measurement date rela)ve to the remaining goods
promised under the contract.
 
Civil engineering & construction contracts
The performance obl iga)ons and transac)on price are determined within contracts  between the customer and the
Company. Each contract has  one performance obl iga)on, the provis ion of specific construc)on ac)vi)es. Contract
modifica)ons are added to exis)ng contracts  where they are changes  to the scope or des ign  of the original  contracts .
There are no variable cons idera)on elements  aLached to any of the contracts . The revenue is  recognised over )me as  the
Company's  performance of i ts  obl iga)ons creates  or enhances  an asset that the customer controls . Payment of the
transaction price is  typical ly due up to a  maximum of 45 days  after the valuation is  submitted.
 
Revenue is  recognised over the period of the contract by reference to the stage of comple)on. The stage of comple)on is
measured by reference to the contract costs  incurred up to the end of the repor)ng period as  a  percentage of total
estimated costs  for each contract.
 
Contract costs  are recognised as  expenses  when incurred. W hen i t i s  probable that total  costs  wi l l  exceed total  contract
revenue, the expected loss  i s  recognised as  an expense immediately.
 
Contract assets  (as  discussed in I F RS 15.107) are recognised when the Group recognises  revenue before the customer pays
consideration or before payment is  due. This  asset i s  assessed for impairment in accordance with IFRS 9.
 
Contract l iabi l i)es  (as  discussed in I F RS 15.106) are recognised i f a  customer pays  cons idera)on before the en)ty
transfers  a  good or service.
 
Segmental reporting
An opera)ng segment is  a  component of the Group that engages  in bus iness  ac)vi)es  from which i t may earn revenue and
incur expenses, including revenue and expenses  that relate to transac)ons with other Group companies . Al l  opera)ng
segments ' opera)ng results  are regularly reviewed by the C EO  & C FO, who are iden)fied as  the Chief O pera)ng Decis ion
Maker to make decis ions  about resources  to be al located to the segment and to assess  i ts  performance.
 
Inventory
I nventory is  s tated at the lower of costs  and net real isable value. Cost of inventory is  recognised at purchase cost and is
determined as  fol lows:
 

·      Raw materia ls                        Weighted average rate method
·      Consumables                         Weighted average rate method

 
Net real isable value for raw materia ls  i s  based on an es)mated sel l ing price less  any further costs  expected to be incurred
for completion and disposal . Consumables  are general ly not resold.
 
I nventory is  assessed for write-downs and, i f wriLen-down, the write-off is  recognised immediately in the income
statement.
 
Retirement benefits: defined contribution schemes
O bl iga)ons for contribu)ons to the defined contribu)on scheme are charged to the consol idated statement of
comprehensive income in the year to which they relate.
 
Exceptional items
I tems that are unusual  or infrequent in nature are presented in the consol idated statement of comprehensive income as
exceptional  i tems.
 
Property, plant and equipment
I tems of property, plant and equipment are ini)al ly recognised at cost. As  wel l  as  the purchase price, cost includes  directly
attributable costs  less  accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses .
 
Deprecia)on is  provided on al l  i tems of property, plant and equipment so as  to write off their carrying value over the
expected useful  l i fe. Land and bui ldings  in construc)on are not depreciated. O ther assets  are depreciated at the fol lowing
rates:              

·      Plant and machinery                           25% reducing balance
·      Motor vehicles                                      25% reducing balance
·      Fixtures  and fi ttings                              3-10 years  straight-l ine
·      Leasehold improvements                    over the l i fe of the lease



·      Leasehold improvements                    over the l i fe of the lease
 
Depreciation charge commences  when the assets  i s  avai lable for use.
 
The assets ' res idual  values, useful  l i fe and deprecia)on methods are reviewed annual ly, and adjusted i f appropriate, or i f
there is  an indication of a  s igni ficant change s ince the last reporting date.
 
Gains  and losses  on disposals  are determined by comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised in
the profi t and loss .
 
Right of use assets
Right of use assets  are measured at cost less  accumulated deprecia)on and accumulated impairment losses . Right of use
assets  are recognised with a  corresponding l iabi l i ty at the date at which the leased asset i s  avai lable for use. Each lease
payment is  a l located between the l iabi l i ty and finance cost. The finance cost i s  charged to the consol idated statement of
comprehensive income over the lease period. The right of use asset i s  depreciated over the shorter of the asset's  useful  l i fe
and the lease term on a straight-l ine bas is .
 
Assets  and l iabi l i)es  aris ing from a lease are ini)al ly measured on a present value bas is . Lease l iabi l i)es  include the net
present value of the fol lowing lease payments:
 

·      fixed payments  (including in-substance fixed payments), less  any lease incentives  receivable;
·      variable lease payments  that are based on an index or a  rate;
·      amounts  expected to be payable by the lessee under res idual  value guarantees;
·      the exercise price of a  purchase option i f the lessee is  reasonably certain to exercise that option; and
·      payments  and penalties  for terminating the lease, i f the lease term reflects  the lessee exercis ing that option.

 
The lease payments  are discounted us ing the rate impl ici t in the lease. I f that rate cannot be determined, the Group's
incremental  borrowing rate is  used, being the rate the Group would have to pay to borrow the funds  necessary to obtain an
asset of s imi lar value.
 
Payments  associated with short-term leases  and leases  of low-value assets  are recognised on a straight l ine bas is  as  an
expense in the consol idated statement of comprehensive income.
 
If an i tem is  purchased at the end of the lease period, i t wi l l  be shown as  an addition transferred from right of use assets .
 
Finance Income and Expenses
Finance income includes  interest receivable on bank deposits .
 
Finance expenses  includes  interest on hire purchase agreements  and leases  for right of use assets .
 
Intangible assets - goodwill
Goodwi l l  i s  the excess  of the costs  of an acquired en)ty over the net of the amounts  ass igned to assets  acquired and
l iabi l i)es  assumed. I t i s  capital ised as  an intangible asset and al located to cash genera)ng units  (with separately
iden)fiable cash flows) and tested for goodwi l l  impairment on an annual  bas is , or more regularly where there are
indicators  of impairment. This  requires  an es)ma)on of the value-in-use of the cash genera)ng units  to which the assets
have been al located. The value-in-use calcula)on requires  the Directors  to es)mate the future cash flows expected to be
generated by the cash genera)ng units , and a suitable discount rate and long-term growth rate to apply in order to
calculate present value. During the period, these es)mates  resulted in no impairment charge (2023: £ni l ) rela)ng to
goodwi l l . Refer to note 16 for the detai ls  of impairment review and the sens itivi ties  appl ied.
 
Intangible assets - impairment
I ntangible assets  with indefinite l ives  are subject to impairment tests  annual ly at the financial  year end. The carrying
values  of non-financial  assets  with finite l ives  are reviewed for impairment when there is  an indica)on that assets  might
be impaired. When the carrying value of an asset exceeds i ts  recoverable amount, the asset i s  wri tten down accordingly.
 
W hen i t i s  not poss ible to es)mate the recoverable amount of an individual  asset, the impairment test i s  carried out on the
asset's  cash genera)ng unit (i .e. the smal lest group of assets  in which the asset belongs  for which there are separately
identi fiable cash flows).
 
I mpairment charges  are included in the consol idated statement of comprehensive income, except to the extent they reverse
previous  gains  recognised in the consol idated statement of comprehensive income. An impairment loss  recognised for
goodwi l l  i s  not reversed.
 
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents  includes  cash on hand and deposits  held with financial  ins)tu)ons with maturi)es  of three
months  or less  from acquis i)on. Cash equivalents  are short-term, highly l iquid investments  that are readi ly conver)ble to
known amounts  of cash and which are subject to an ins ignificant risk of changes  in value. The Group does  not have a bank
overdraft.
 
Financial instruments
The Group class ifies  i ts  financial  assets  into the fol lowing three measurement categories  based on the way the asset i s
managed and i ts  contractual  cash flow characteristics :
 
Amortised cost
Assets  that are held for col lec)on of contractual  cash flows where those cash flows represent solely payments  of principal
and interest on the principal  amount outstanding are measured at amortised cost.
 
Fair value through other comprehensive income ("FVOCI")
Assets  that are held for col lec)on of contractual  cash flows and for sel l ing the financial  assets , where the assets ' cash
flows represent solely payments  of principal  and interest, are measured at FVOCI.
 
Fair value through profit or loss
Assets  that do not meet the cri teria  of amortised cost or FVOCI are measured at fa i r value through profi t or loss .
 
The Group's  principal  financial  instruments  comprise cash and cash equivalents , trade and other receivables , contract
assets , trade and other payables  and contract l iabi l i)es. Based on the way these financial  instruments  are being managed,
and their contractual  cash flow characteristics , a l l  the Group's  financial  instruments  are measured at amortised cost.
 
Financial instruments - impairment
The Group assesses  the expected credit losses  associated with i ts  financial  assets  measured at amor)sed cost on a
forward-looking bas is . The Group appl ies  the s impl ified approach, as  permiLed by I F RS 9, to measuring expected credit
losses  which uses  a  l i fe)me expected loss  a l lowance for a l l  trade receivables  and contract assets  on an individual
customer bas is .
 
Expected credit losses  are assessed on an individual  bas is  by cons idering poss ible defaults  for the next 12 months. A
monthly review of debt is  included in contract review mee)ngs. These mee)ngs a lso cons ider the progress  on the contract
and assess  any final  margin adjustments  which may be required. The customers  financial  pos i)on is  monitored by
tracking of accounts  filed and publ ic announcements . Any debt outstanding for more than four years  is  wriLen off in ful l .
Any impairment gain or loss  i s  recognised in the profi t and loss  statements .
 
Investments



Investments
Subsidiaries
The Company has  investments  in subs idiaries  which are carried at historical  cost, less  any provis ion for impairment.
 
The Group tests  for impairment of i ts  investment in subs idiaries  on an annual  bas is , or more regularly where there are
indicators  of impairment. An impairment loss  i s  recognised for the amount by which the asset's  carrying amount exceeds
its  recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is  the higher of an asset's  fa i r value less  costs  of disposal  and value-in-
use. This  requires  an estimation of the value in use of the cash generating units  to which the investment has  been al located.
The value-in-use calcula)on requires  the Directors  to es)mate the future cash flows expected to be generated by the cash
genera)ng units , and a suitable discount rate and long-term growth rate to apply in order to calculate present value.
During the period, these es)mates  resulted in no impairment charge (2023: £ni l ) rela)ng to investments  in the
subsidiaries .
 
Share capital and retained earnings
O rdinary shares  are class ified as  equity. I ncremental  costs  aLributable to the issue of new ordinary shares  or op)ons are
shown in equity as  a  deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.
 
Retained earnings  are class i fied as  equity.
 
F inancial  instruments  issued by the Group are treated as  equity only to the extent that they do not meet the defini)on of a
financial  l iabi l i ty, which is  a  contractual  obl iga)on to del iver cash or s imi lar to another en)ty or a  poten)al ly
unfavourable exchange of financial  assets  or l iabi l i ties  with another enti ty.
 
Dividends
Final  equity dividends to the shareholders  of Nexus  I nfrastructure plc are recognised in the period that they are approved
by shareholders . Interim equity dividends are recognised in the period that they are paid.
 
Dividends receivable are recognised when the Company's  right to receive payment is  establ ished.
 
Tax
Tax on the profit or loss  for the year comprises  current and deferred tax. Tax is  recognised in the consol idated statement of
comprehensive income.
 
Current tax is  the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, us ing tax rates  enacted or substan)vely enacted
at the date of the statement of financial  pos ition, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous  years .
 
Deferred tax l iabi l i)es  are recognised in ful l  us ing the balance sheet l iabi l i ty method on temporary differences  between the
carrying amounts  of assets  and l iabi l i)es  for financial  and repor)ng purposes  and the amounts  used for taxa)on
purposes, except for di fferences  aris ing on:
 

·      the ini tia l  recognition of goodwi l l ;
·      the ini)al  recogni)on of an asset or l iabi l i ty in a  transac)on which is  not a  bus iness  combina)on and at the )me

of the transaction affects  neither accounting nor taxable profi t; and
·      investments  in subs idiaries  are jointly control led en))es where the Group is  able to control  the )ming of the

reversal  of the di fference and i t i s  probable that the di fference wi l l  not reverse in the foreseeable future.             
The recogni)on of deferred tax assets  i s  restricted to those instances  where i t i s  probable that taxable profit wi l l  be
avai lable against which the di fference can be uti l i sed.
 
The amount of the asset or l iabi l i ty i s  determined us ing tax rates  that have been enacted or substan)vely enacted by the
repor)ng date and are expected to apply when the deferred tax l iabi l i)es  or assets  are seLled or recovered. Deferred tax
balances  are not discounted.
 
Deferred tax assets  and l iabi l i)es  are offset when the Group has  a  legal ly enforceable right to offset current tax assets  and
l iabi l i ties  and the deferred tax assets  and l iabi l i ties  relate to taxes  levied by the same tax authori ty on ei ther:
 

·      the same taxable Group company; or
·      different company en))es which intend either to seLle current tax assets  and l iabi l i)es  on a net bas is , or to

real ise the assets  and seLle the l iabi l i)es  s imultaneously, in each future period in which s ignificant amounts  of
deferred tax assets  and l iabi l i ties  are expected to be settled or recovered.

 
Discontinued operations
A discon)nued opera)on is  a  component of an en)ty that ei ther has  been disposed of, or that i s  class ified as  held for sale
and represents  a  separate major l ine of bus iness  or geographical  area of operations.
 
Certain compara)ve figures  have been reclass ified to discon)nued opera)ons, as  a  result of the sale of Tri Connex Limited
and eSmart Networks  Limited on 3 February 2023 for £77.7m. The gain on the sale is  shown in the statement of
comprehensive income as  profi t for discontinued operations  in FY23.
 
Provisions and contingent liabilities
P rovis ions  are recognised when the Group has  a  present legal  or construc)ve obl iga)on as  a  result of a  past event, i t i s
probable that an ouMlow wi l l  be required to seLle the obl iga)on, and the amount can be rel iably es)mated. P rovis ions  are
presented at the present value of the best es)mate of the cons idera)on required to seLle the obl iga)on present at the
balance sheet date, taking into account the risks  and uncertainties  surrounding the obl igation.
 
W hen the Group expects  some or a l l  of a  provis ion in respect of a  completed contract to be reimbursed, for example, under
an insurance contract or a  contractual  right to recourse from supply chain partners , the reimbursement is  recognised as  a
separate asset when the reimbursement is  vi rtual ly certain. A completed contract i s  deemed to be one where prac)cal
completion has  taken place, the defect l iabi l i ty period has  expired, and any outstanding retentions  have been recovered.
 
The Group wi l l  disclose a  con)ngent l iabi l i ty unless  the poss ibi l i ty of an ouMlow of resources  is  remote. W here a
con)ngent l iabi l i ty disclosure is  made the Group wi l l  cons ider whether the financial  impact can be es)mated, the
uncertainties  relating to the estimate, the timing of any outflow and the poss ibi l i ty of any reimbursement.
 
 
2. Critical accounting estimates and judgements
The Group makes  certain es)mates  and judgements  regarding the future. Es)mates  and judgements  are con)nual ly
evaluated based on historical  experience and other factors , including the expecta)ons of future events  that are bel ieved to
be reasonable under the ci rcumstances.
 
Judgements
The most s igni ficant areas  of judgement arise from recoverabi l i ty of debt and impairment of goodwi l l  and investments .
 
a) Recoverability of debt
As part of the process  of gaining new bus iness  i t i s  necessary to carry out checks  on the organisa)ons for which the Group
wi l l  carry out work. The value of individual  contracts  i s  substan)al  and the risk of default i s  a lways  present. During the
year detai led reviews are undertaken by the Directors ; es)ma)ng the non-recoverabi l i ty of debt. These reviews and
es)ma)ons are seen as  cri)cal . Judgement is  necessary to assess  the l ikel ihood that a  l iabi l i ty wi l l  arise, or a  debt is  not
recoverable and to quan)fy the poss ible amount of any expected credit loss . The inherent uncertainty of such maLers
means that actual  amounts  of transactions  may di ffer materia l ly from estimates  made. Any di fference between the amounts
recognized and the actual  amount is  recognised immediately in the statement of comprehensive income.
 
b) Impairment of goodwill and investments



b) Impairment of goodwill and investments
The Group tests  goodwi l l  annual ly for impairment, based on discounted future cash flows. The Company tests  investments
annual ly for impairment, based on discounted future cash flows. These calcula)ons require judgement to assess  the future
cash flows and to assess  the growth level  assessments . The inherent uncertainty of such maLers  means that actual
amounts  of transac)ons may differ materia l ly from es)mates  made. Any difference between the amounts  recognized and
the actual  amount is  recognised immediately in the statement of comprehensive income.
 
Estimates
The most s igni ficant area of estimation arises  from accounting for profi tabi l i ty of contracts .
 
a) Profitability of contracts
Contract accoun)ng requires  es)mates  to be made for contract costs  and income. I n many cases, these contractual
obl iga)ons span more than one financial  period. The costs  and income may be affected by a  number of uncertain)es  that
depend on the outcome of future events  and may need to be revised as  events  unfold and uncertain)es  are resolved.
Management bases  i ts  es)ma)on of costs  and income and i ts  assessment of the expected outcome of each contractual
obl iga)on on the latest avai lable informa)on, which includes  detai led contract valua)ons and forecast of the costs  to
complete. The es)mates  of the contract pos i)on, reflec)ng both the forecasted costs  and the rel iable es)mate of the
forecasted revenue on each contract, and the profit or loss  earned to date are updated regularly and s ignificant changes
are highl ighted through establ ished internal  repor)ng and review procedures. The impact of any change in the accoun)ng
estimates  is  then reflected in the financial  s tatements .
 
3. Capital management
The Group's  capital  i s  made up of share capital , share premium and retained earnings  total l ing £29,982,000 (2023:
£33,010,000).
 
The Group's  objectives  when maintaining capital  are:
 

·      to safeguard the en)ty's  abi l i ty to con)nue as  a  going concern, so that i t can con)nue to provide returns  for
shareholders  and benefi ts  for other stakeholders ; and

·      to provide an adequate return to shareholders  by pricing services  commensurately with the level  of risk.
 
The capital  s tructure of the Group cons ists  of shareholders ' equity as  set out in the consol idated statement of changes  in
equity. Al l  working capital  requirements  are financed from existing cash resources.
 
Note 23 to the financial  s tatements  provides  detai ls  of how the Group manages  i ts  capital  s tructure and makes
adjustments  to i t in l ight of changes  in economic conditions.
 
4. Revenue
Revenues from external  customers  for con)nuing opera)ons are generated from the supply of services  rela)ng to C ivi l
Engineering and construc)on contracts . Revenues from external  customers  for discon)nued opera)ons are generated from
the supply of des ign, instal la)on and connec)on of mul)-u)l i ty networks , and energy trans i)on projects . Revenue is
recognised in the fol lowing operating divis ions:              
 
 

2024   
Continuing  2024
Operations  Total

£'000  £'000
Segment revenue 56,713  56,713

   
Revenue from external customers 56,713  56,713
Timing of revenue recognition    
Over time 56,713  56,713
Customer type    
Residentia l 56,713  56,713

56,713  56,713
 

2023 2023
Continuing Discontinued 2023
Operations Operations Total

£'000 £'000 £'000
Segment revenue 88,691 23,484 112,175
Inter-segment revenue - - -
Revenue from external customers 88,691 23,484 112,175
Timing of revenue recognition
Over time 88,691 23,484 112,175
Customer type
Residentia l 87,839 17,992 105,831
Non-res identia l 852 5,492 6,344

88,691 23,484 112,175
 

The Group has  recognised the fol lowing assets  and l iabi l i ties  related to contracts  with customers:

2024 2023
£'000 £'000

Contract assets  
Accrued income - continuing operations 2,647 2,784
Total 2,647 2,784
 

The decrease in contract assets  during the year is  due to the timing of appl ications/invoices  to external  customers  and
materia ls  held on s i te for imminent works .
 

2024 2023
£'000 £'000

Contract liabilities  
Deferred income - continuing operations 266 552
Total 266 552
 
The decrease in contract l iabi l i)es  during the year is  due to the )ming of invoices  to external  customers  exceeding the
revenue recognised.
The fol lowing table shows how much of the revenue from external  customers  relates  to the contract l iabi l i)es  at the
beginning of the year:
 

30 September 30 September
2024 2023



2024 2023
£'000 £'000

554 1,664
 

Management expects  that £36,582,568 representing 71.5% (2023: £31,477,000 representing 67.4%) of the transaction price
al located to unsatis fied performance obl igations  as  at 30 September 2024 wi l l  be recognised within one year and the
remaining £14,568,000 representing 28.5% (2023: £15,193,000 representing 32.6%) within two to five years .

 

The Group has  not recognised any assets  in relation to costs  to ful fi l  a  contract (2023: £ni l ).

More than one customer is  responsible for over 10% of revenue and detai ls  are presented below:

2024 2023
£'000 £'000

Tamdown  
Cus tome r 1                                                                                                           - 14,995
Cus tome r 2                                                                                                       - 15,000
Cus tome r 3                                                                                                           11,916 12,962
Cus tome r 4                                                                                                             12,112 11,000
Cus tome r 5 14,597 8,759
Cus tome r 6 7,138 -
 

5. Other income

O ther income of £1.8m comes from the seLlement of a  cla im against a  suppl ier for damages caused by the supply of faulty
services .

2024
 £'000

2023
£'000

Income from cla im 1,819 -
1,819 -

 

6. Segmental analysis- income statement

The Group has  one opera)ng divis ion under the control  of the Execu)ve Board, which is  iden)fied as  the Chief O pera)ng
Decis ion Maker as  defined under IFRS 8: Operating Segment:

·    Tamdown
 

Al l  of the Group's  operations  are carried out entirely within the United Kingdom.

The results  for Tri Connex and eSmart Networks  have been presented as  discon)nued under I F RS 5, with the Tamdown and
Group administra)on expenses  compris ing the con)nuing opera)ons below. The related assets  and l iabi l i)es  of these
operations  have been s imi larly presented.

Segment information about the Group's  operations  is  presented below:

2024 2023
£'000 £'000

Revenue from continuing operations
Tamdown 56,713 87,839
Nexus Infrastructure plc - 841
Nexus Park Ltd - 11
Total revenue from continuing operations 56,713 88,691
Revenue from discontinued operations
TriConnex - 17,992
eSmart Networks - 5,492
Total revenue from discontinued operations - 23,484
Total revenue 56,713 112,175
Gross profit from continuing operations
Tamdown 7,664 5,120
Nexus Infrastructure plc - 841
Nexus Park Ltd - 11
Total  gross  profi t from continuing operations 7,664 5,972
Gross  profi t from discontinued operations  
TriConnex - 4,649
eSmart Networks - 1,256
Total gross profit from discontinued operations - 5,905
Total gross profit 7,664 11,036
Operating (loss)/profit from continuing operations after exceptional items
Tamdown (353) (6,031)
Group administrative expenses (1,863) (2,356)
Nexus  Park (9) -
Total operating (loss) from continuing operations after exceptional items (2,225) (8,387)
Operating profit/(loss) from discontinued operations after exceptional items  
TriConnex - 850
eSmart Networks - (1,102)
Total operating (loss)/profit from discontinued operations after exceptional items - (252)
Total operating (loss)/profit after exceptional items (2,225) (8,639)
 

The value of depreciation included in the measure of segment profi t i s :

2024 2023
£'000 £'000

Tamdown 1,616 1,284
Group 1,011 1,060
Total depreciation - continuing operations 2,627 2,344
Total  depreciation 2,627 2,344
 

7. Segmental analysis - Statement of Financial Position

Balance sheet analys is  of operating segments:

2024 2024 2024



2024 2024 2024
Assets Liabilities Net assets
£'000 £'000 £'000

Continuing operations    
Tamdown 29,307 14,196 15,110
Group 25,690 10,819 14,871
Total for continuing operations 54.997 25,015 29,982
 

2023 2023 2023
Assets Liabi l i ties Net assets
£'000 £'000 £'000

Continuing operations
Tamdown 31,729 16,355 15,374
Group 29,034 11,399 17,636
Total for continuing operations 60,763  27,754 33,010
 

Group represents  head office expenses  aKer deduc)ng income received from trans i)onal  services  agreement. Assets
class ified within Group principal ly comprise goodwi l l  and a right of use asset. Liabi l i)es  class ified within Group
principal ly comprise lease l iabi l i ties  and creditors .

8. Exceptional items

2024 2023
£'000 £'000

Continuing operations
Re dunda ncy cos ts 279 645
Tota l 279 645
 

9. Operating loss

The operating loss  i s  s tated after charging/(crediting):

 

2024 2023
£'000 £'000

Continuing operations
De pre ci a ti on of prope rty, pl a nt a nd e qui pme nt 745 726
De pre ci a ti on of ri ght of us e  a s s e ts 1,882 1,618
Profi t on di s pos a l  of a s s e ts (153) (573)
Audit and non-audit services:
Fe e s  pa ya bl e  to the  Compa ny's  a udi tors  for the  a udi t of the  Compa ny a nd cons ol i da te d
fi na nci a l  s ta te me nts

88 110

Fe e s  pa ya bl e  to the  Compa ny's  a udi tors  for the  a udi t of the  Compa ny's  s ubs i di a ri e s
purs ua nt to l e gi s l a ti on

90 85

 

There have been no fees  payable to the Company's  auditors  in respect of non-audit remuneration.

10. Staff costs

Group Group Company Compa ny
2024 2023 2024 2023

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Continuing operations
Wa ge s  a nd s a l a ri e s 14,668 19,585 1,249 2,148
Sha re -ba s e d pa yme nts - 700 - 700
Soci a l  s e curi ty cos ts 1,606 2,205 167 252
Othe r pe ns i on cos ts 259 382 13 55
Tota l  - conti nui ng ope ra ti ons 16,533 22,872 1,428 3,155
Discontinued operations
Wa ge s  a nd s a l a ri e s - 3,333 - -
Soci a l  s e curi ty cos ts - 372 - -
Othe r pe ns i on cos ts - 60 - -
Tota l  - di s conti nue d ope ra ti ons - 3,765 - -
Tota l  ope ra ti ons 16,533 26,637 1,428 3,155
 

The average monthly number of employees  (including Directors) during the year was:

2024 2023
 

Continuing operations
Ta mdown 233 377
Group 15 29
Discontinued operations
Tri Conne x - 246
e Sma rt Ne tworks - 110

248 762
The average number of people employed by the Company (including Directors) during the year was 15 (2023: 29).

The Directors  of the Group are cons idered by the Board to be the key management of the Group, for which remunera)on in
the year ended 30 September 2024 total led £644,000 (2023: £862,000), including: short-term employee benefits  £27,000
(2023: £42,000), employer pens ion contribu)ons £4,000 (2023: £34,000and share-based payment charge £ni l  (2023:
£450,000).

11. Finance income and expense

2024 2023
£'000 £'000

Finance income
Continuing operations  
Interest on bank deposits 151 447
Discontinued operations  
Interest on bank deposits - 26
Finance expense  
Continuing operations
Interest on hire purchase agreements - (56)



Interest on hire purchase agreements - (56)
Interest on lease l iabi l i ties (690) (543)

(690) (599)
Discontinued operations
Interest on lease l iabi l i ties - (21)

- (21)
Finance expense (net) (539) (152)
 

12. Taxation

2024 2023
£'000 £'000

Current tax - continuing operations:
UK corporation tax on profi ts  for the year - -
Adjustment in respect of prior periods - 50
Total current tax - 50
Deferred tax - continuing operations:
Origination and reversal  of timing di fference 75 (34)
Adjustment in respect of prior periods (75) (55)
Effect of tax rate change on opening balance - (8)
Total deferred tax - discontinued operations - (96)
Total deferred tax - (96)
Total tax charge - (46)
 

The tax assessed for the year is  lower than (2023: lower than) the standard rate of corpora)on tax as  appl ied in the UK . The
differences  are explained below:

2024 2023
£'000 £'000

(Loss)/profi t before tax (2,764) 58,813
(Loss)/profi t before tax multipl ied by the respective standard rate of corporation tax
appl icable in the UK (25%) (2023: 22.1%)

(691) 12,998

Effects  of:
Fixed asset di fferences 2 (11)
Non-deductible expenses 48 1,760
Income not taxable for tax purposes  (16,713)
Other tax adjustments , rel iefs  and transfers - -
Chargeable gains/losses - (58)
Group income - 247
Adjustment in respect of prior periods  - current tax - 38
Adjustment in respect of prior periods  - deferred tax (75) (55)
Remeasurement of deferred tax for changes  in tax rates - (251)
Movement in deferred tax not recognised 715 1,999
Total tax charge - (46)
Income tax expense from continuing operations - (46)
Income tax expense from discontinued operations - -
Total tax (credit)/charge - (46)
 

There was no income tax (charged)/credited directly to equity in the year (2023: £ni l ).

At the balance sheet date, the Group has  unused tax losses  of £9.6m (2023: £7.85m) and other fixed asset and short term
temporary differences  of £103kk (2023: £142k) avai lable for offset against future profits  with an indefinite expiry period.
Based on the projec)ons, there are insufficient future taxable profits  to jus)fy the recogni)on of a  deferred tax asset. O n
this  bas is , no deferred tax asset has  been recognised in the current year, the unrecognised deferred tax asset calculated at
the substantively enacted rate in the UK of 25% amounts  to £2.87m as  at 30 September 2024 (2023: £1.99m).

13. Dividends

2024 2023
Group and Company £'000 £'000
Amounts  recognised as  distributions  to equity holders  in the year:
Interim dividend for the year ended 30 September 2024 of 1p per share (2023: 1.0p per
share)

90 90

Final  dividend for the year ended 30 September 2023 of £2p per share (2022: £ni l  per
share)

181 -

271 90
 
The proposed final  dividend for the year ended 30 September 2024 of 2.0p per share (2023: 2.0p per share) makes  a  total
dividend for the year of 3.0p per share (2023: 3.0p per share). The proposed final  dividend is  subject to approval  by
shareholders  at a  GM and has  not been included as  a  l iabi l i ty in these financial  s tatements . The total  es)mated final
dividend to be paid is  £180,686 (2023: £180,686).
 
14. Earnings per share
Basic earnings  per share is  calculated by dividing the profit aLributable to equity shareholders  of the Company by the
weighted average number of shares  in issue for the year.
 
D i luted earnings  per share is  calculated by adjus)ng the weighted average number of shares  in issue for the year to
assume convers ion of a l l  di lutive potentia l  shares .
 
The calculation of the bas ic and di luted earnings  per share is  based on the fol lowing data:
 

2024 2023
£'000 £'000

Weighted average number of shares  in issue for the year 9,034,307 24,605,883
Effect of di lutive potentia l  ordinary shares:  
Share options  (number) - -
Weighted average number of shares  for the purpose of di luted earnings  per share 9,034,307 24,605,883
(Loss)/Profi t for the year attributable to equity shareholders (2,764) 58,799
Basic earnings  (p per share) (30.60) 238.96
Di luted earnings  (p per share) (30.60) 238.96
Continuing operations  
Loss  for the year from continuing operations (2,764) (8,494)
Bas ic losses  (p per share) (30.60) (34.52)
Di luted losses  (p per share) (30.60) (34.52)
There are no share options  in place so no di lutive effect on the earnings  per share  
Discontinued operations  
Profi t for the year from discontinued operations - 67,292



Profi t for the year from discontinued operations - 67,292
Basic earnings  (p per share) - 273.48
Di luted earnings  (p per share) - 273.48
 

15. Property, plant and equipment

Leasehold Plant and Motor Fixtures  and
improvements machinery vehicles fi ttings Total

Group £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Cost
At 1 October 2022 4,050 2,131 135 1,884  8,200
Additions - 183 299 347 829
Disposals - (2,826) (54) (68) (2,948)
Transfer from right of use assets 2,384 - - 2,389
At 30 September 2023 4,050 1,872 380 2,163 8,465
Additions   618 184 - 801
Disposals (658) (661) (30) (416) (1,764)
At 30 September 2024 3,392 1,829 534 1,747 7,502
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 October 2022 742 1,523 86 390 2,741
Charge for the year 170 156 33 357 726
Disposals - (1,983) (49) (28) (2,060)
Transfer from right of use assets - 1,681 - - 1,681
At 30 September 2023 912 1,377 70 729 3,088
Charge for the year 169 156 116 293 745
Disposals (658) (540) (13) (189) (1,400)
At 30 September 2024 423 993 172 833 2,423
Net book value
At 30 September 2022 3,308 608 49 1,494 5,459
At 30 September 2023 3,138 495 310 1,434 5,377
At 30 September 2024  2,968 834 361 913 5,079
 

Fixtures
and fi ttings

Company £'000
Cost
At 1 October 2022 345
Additions 301
At 30 September 2023 646
Disposals (408)  
At 30 September 2024 228  
Accumulated depreciation   
At 1 October 2022 70
Charge for the year 171
At 30 September 2023 241
Charge for the year 127  
Disposals (190)  
At 30 September 2024 168  
Net book value   
At 30 September 2022 275
At 30 September 2023 405
At 30 September 2024 60  
 
16. Right of use assets and lease liabilities
 
The Group has  leases  for freehold property, plant and machinery, motor vehicles  and fixtures  and fi ttings . Leases  for
freehold property relate mainly to office properties , whi lst the plant and machinery leases  are predominantly large
machinery used in s i te operations.
 
The statement of financial  pos ition shows the fol lowing information relating to right of use assets  and leases:
 

2024 2023
£'000 £'000

Right of use assets  
Fre e hol d prope rty 9,583 10,217
Pl a nt a nd ma chi ne ry 415 610
Motor ve hi cl e s 275 604
Fi xture s  a nd fi tti ngs - 4

10,273 11,435
Lease liabilities  
Curre nt 1,531 1,826
Non-curre nt 9,638 9,818

11,169 11,644
 
Addi)ons to the right of use assets  during the year were £710,000 (2023: £1,088,000). D isposals  of £514,000 (2023:
£1,408,000) were also recorded. The right of use assets  transferred to property, plant and equipment during the year was
£ni l  (2023: £2,384,000).
 
The statement of comprehensive income shows the fol lowing amounts  relating to right of use assets  and leases:
 

2024 2023
£'000 £'000

Depreciation  
Freehold property 677 697
Plant and machinery 895 606
Motor vehicles 310 315
Fixtures  and fi ttings - -

1,882 1,618
Interest expense (690) (599)
Expenses  relating to short-term leases - 127
Expenses  relating to low-value leases  that are not shown above as  short-term leases 19 7
 

The total  cash outflow for leases  during the year was  £2,302,000 (2023: £1,472,000).

The present value of lease l iabi l i ties  i s  as  fol lows:



The present value of lease l iabi l i ties  i s  as  fol lows:

Group Group Company Company
2024 2023 2024 2023

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Within one year 2,097 1,830 9 10
Two to five years 3,509 4,308 23 32
Over five years 13,467 14,842 - -
Future finance charge on lease l iabi l i ties (7,905) (9,336) - -
Present value of lease liabilities 11,169 11,644 32 42
 

The  compa ra ti ve s  i n the  a bove  ta bl e  ha ve  be e n cha nge d to e ns ure  cons i s te ncy of pre s e nta ti on wi th the  curre nt ye a r a l ong
wi th the  ROU a ddi ti ons  a nd pri nci pa l  l e a s e  pa yme nts  on the  ca s hfl ow s ta te me nt a nd ta bl e  i n the  ca s h fl ow i nforma ti on
note  to a l i gn wi th the  curre nt ye a r pre s e nta ti on.

 

Extens ion and termina)on op)ons are included in a  number of leases  across  the Group. These are used to maximise
operational  flexibi l i ty in terms of managing the assets  used in the Group's  operations.

17. Goodwill

2024 2023
£'000 £'000

Carrying value 2,361 2,361
 

Impairment testing                                                            

The Group tests  goodwi l l  annual ly for impairment. During the year, impairment tests  were undertaken over the goodwi l l  of
Tamdown Group Limited £2,361,000 (2023: £2,361,000).

There is  cons idered to be one cash genera)ng unit in the Group which wi l l  provide the future economic benefit to the
Group, this  cash generating unit i s  Tamdown Group Limited which is  the main operational  bus iness .

A post-tax discount rate of 12.0% (2023: 12.0%) has  been used in the cashflow calcula)on, which is  based upon the capital
structure of the Group.  The pre-tax discount rate would be 16.0% (2023: 16.0%). Changes  to the capital  s tructure may
impact upon the Group's  discount rate in future periods. The key assump)ons u)l ised within the forecast model  relate to
the level  of future sales , which have been es)mated based upon the Directors ' expecta)ons, current trading and recent
actual  trading performance. The value-in-use calcula)on indicates  that Tamdown Group Limited has  a  recoverable amount
which is  greater than the carrying amount of assets  a l located to them. The Directors  have undertaken sens i)vity analys is
including decreas ing revenue through work winning (reduced by 20%) and ac)vity from the order book (reduced by 10%)
and gross  margins  (reduced by 2%), which indicates  that a  reasonable change in assump)on wi l l  not give rise to an
impairment.

The  re cove ra bl e  a mount wa s  de te rmi ne d us i ng a  va l ue -i n-us e  ca l cul a ti on ba s e d upon Di re ctors ' fore ca s ts  for the  tra di ng
re s ul ts  for the  thre e  ye a rs  e ndi ng 30 Se pte mbe r 2025 e xte nde d to 30 Se pte mbe r 2027 us i ng a n e s ti ma te d growth ra te s  of 11%
(2025), 24.9% (2026) a nd 11.5%% (2027). Pos t 2027 a n a ve ra ge  growth ra te  of 7.5% ha s  be e n us e d.

The  fol l owi ng ta bl e  s e ts  out the  ke y a s s umpti ons  for Ta mdown Group Li mi te d, whi ch ha s  goodwi l l  a tta che d to i t:

2025 2026 2027+ 2028+

Revenue (% annual  growth rate)  21.5% 24.9% 11.5% 7.5%
Gross  margin 13.9% 15.0% 15.0% 15.0%
Operating margin 1.9% 4.2% 4.9% 5.2%
 

18. Investments in subsidiaries

2024 2023
£'000 £'000

Inve s tme nts  i n s ubs i di a ry compa ni e s 20,545 20,545
 

The fol lowing are subs idiaries  of Nexus  I nfrastructure plc, which owns 100% of the ordinary share capital , a l l  of which are
registered in England and Wales:

Activi ty
Tamdown Group Limited Construction services
Tamdown Services  Limited1 Supply of labour to the construction industry

Tamdown Plant Hire Limited1 Engineering plant hire
Nexus  Park Limited Development of bui lding projects
1.     Held by Tamdown Group Limited
 

The registered address  of a l l  subs idiaries  i s  Nexus  Park, Avenue East, Skyl ine 120, Great Notley, Braintree, Essex, CM77 7AL.

Investments  in Group undertakings  are recorded at cost less  any impairment charge.

The financial  s tatements  for the year ended 30 September 2024 for Nexus  Park Limited, Tamdown P lant Hire Limited and
Tamdown Services  Limited have been exempted from audit under Sec)on 479A of the Companies  Act 2006 by way of
parental  guarantee from Nexus  Infrastructure plc.

19. Inventories

Group Group Company Company
2024 2023 2024 2023

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Consumables - 44 - 44

- 44 - 44
 

The value of raw materia ls  purchased as  inventory and later recognised as  an expense in the year ended 30 September
2024 amounted to £ni l  (2023: £ni l ).

There were no write-downs of raw materia ls  during the year.

20. Trade and other receivables

Non-current assets Group
2024
E'000

Group
2023
£'000

Company
2024
£'000

Company
As restated
2023
£'000



£'000

Other receivables - - 6,329 6,278
 - - 6,329 6,278
 

Group Group Company Company
As restated

Current assets 2024 2023 2024 2023
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Trade receivables  from contracts  with customers 20,536 23,272 64 340
Other receivables 678 524 8 2
Prepayments 622 338 96 111
Amounts  owed by Group undertakings - - 206 -

21,836 24,135 374 453
 

Prior year restatement

The company results  for the year ended 30 September 2023 have been restated to recognise the longer-term nature of the
receivable from Nexus  Park Ltd.

As  a  result, the company has  reclass i fied balances  as  fol lows

 

As reported
30 September
2023
£'000

Restatement
£'000

As restated
30 September
2023
£'000

Non-current assets
Other receivables - 6,278 6,278
Current assets
Trade and other receivables 6,731 (6,278) 453

As reported
1 October 2022
£'000

Restatement
£'000

As restated
1 October 2022
£'000

Non-current assets
Other receivables - 5,955 5,955
Current assets
Trade and other receivables 6,312 (5,955) 357

 

Bas ic and di luted earnings  per share for the prior year have not been restated as  a  result of the above as  there has  been on
impact on the statement of comprehensive income.

Group Group Company Company
2024 2023 2024 2023

Overdue trade receivables £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
By less  than three months 2,740 3,444 64 339
Over three but less  than s ix months 427 1,465 - -
Over s ix months  but less  than one year 1,401 1,574 - -
Over one year 3,234 3,248 - -

7,802 9,731 64 339
 

The carrying value of trade receivables  is  s tated after the fol lowing al lowance for expected credit losses:

 

Group Group Company Company
2024 2023 2024 2023

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
At 1 October 1,070 1,056 - -
Charged to the statement of comprehensive income 2,004 99 - -
(Written back) to the statement of comprehensive income (215) (85) - -
At 30 September 2,859 1,070 - -
 

The statement of comprehensive income includes  a  credit loss  of £2,935,000 in 2023 which relates  to the expected future
losses  on trade receivables . Amounts  owed by Group undertakings  are unsecured, repayable on demand and interest free.
Expected credit losses  are based on the assump)on that repayment of the loan is  demanded at the repor)ng date. No
al lowance for expected credit losses  related to amounts  owed by Group undertakings  is  deemed necessary as  the amounts
due are from 100% owned subs idiaries  which would be supported by the parent company. The above trade and other
receivables  are shown net of their expected credit loss  a l lowances, which total  £0.88m (2023: £1.07m). The Group's
standard invoice payment terms are 35 days.

Due to the nature of the current receivables , their carrying value is  cons idered to be the same as  their fa i r value.
 
21. Assets held for sale and associated liabilities, and discontinued operations
On 30 December 2022, the Group announced i ts  intention to dispose of the subs idiaries  TriConnex Ltd and eSmart Networks
Ltd. The disposal  completed on 3 February 2023 and the former subs idiaries  were reported in the financial  s tatements  for
the period to 30 September 2023 as  discontinued operations. Financial  information relating to the discontinued operations
for the period to the date of disposal  are set out below. The financial  performance and cash flow informa)on presented are
for the four months  ended 31 January 2023.
 

   eSmart
   Total TriConnex Networks
   2023 2023 2023
   £'000 £'000 £'000

Revenue    23,484 17,992 5,492
Expenses    (23,795) (16,942) (6,853)
(Loss)/profit before income tax    (312) 1,049 (1,361)
Income tax expense    60 (199) 259
(Loss)/profi t after income tax of    (252) 850 (1,102)



(Loss)/profi t after income tax of
discontinued operations

   (252) 850 (1,102)

Gain on sale of subs idiaries  (see
below)

   67,545

Total gain on sale of subsidiary    67,292
 

Consideration received: Total
2023

£'000

TriConnex
2023

£'000

eSmart
2023

£'000
Cash 77,700 - -
Carrying amount of net assets sold 7,746 9,080 (1,333)
Costs related to the sale of the discontinued operations (2,409) - -
Gain on sale after income tax 67,545 - -
 

The carrying amounts  of assets  and l iabi l i ties  as  at the date of sale (3 February 2023) were:

   
   Total
   2023
   £'000

Non-current assets    
Property, plant and equipment    798
Right of use assets    1,585
Total non-current assets    2,383
Current assets    
Inventories    3,625
Trade and other receivables    14,450
Contract assets    23,232
Corporation tax asset    330
Cash    15,123
Total current assets    56,760
Total assets    59,143
Current liabilities    
Trade and other creditors    15,123
Contract l iabi l i ties    34,449
Lease l iabi l i ties    513
Corporation tax l iabi l i ty    314
Total current liabilities    50,399
Non-current liabilities    
Lease l iabi l i ties    883
Deferred tax l iabi l i ties    115
Total non-current liabilities    998
Total liabilities    51,397
Net assets    7,746
 

22. Trade and other payables

Group Group Company Company
2024 2023 2024 2023

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Trade payables              12,055 13,683 201 108
Other payables 373 492 149 33
Accruals 656 804 309 367
Social  securi ty and other tax payable 484 561 42 51
Amounts  owed to Group undertakings - - - 905
Current 13,568 15,540 701 1,464
 

Other payables  comprises  payrol l -related l iabi l i ties .
 
Amounts  owed to Group undertakings  are unsecured, repayable on demand and interest free.
 
The carrying amounts  of trade and other payables  are cons idered to be the same as  their fa i r values, due to their short-
term nature.
 
23. Deferred tax
Net deferred tax position

Group Group Company Company
2024 2023 2024 2023

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
At 1 October - 96  
Charge/(credit) for the year - (96)  -
Transfer to assets  held for sale - - - -
At 30 September - - -
 

The unrecognised deferred tax asset on losses  is  £2.87m (2023: £ni l ).
 
24. Share capital
 
I n the prior year, the Group purchased 37,147,878 ordinary shares  of £0.02 for cancel la)on at £1.63 per ordinary share,
as  part of a  capital  distribu)on.  This  returned £60.5m to shareholders  by way of a  tender O ffer fol lowing the sale of
TriConnex and eSmart Networks.
                               
Shares  are ful ly paid at par and the rights  attached to the ordinary shares  are disclosed within the articles  of association.
 

2024 2023
Group and Company £'000 £'000
9,034,307 (2023: 9,034,307) ordinary shares  of £0.02 each (authorised and in issue) 181 181

181 181
 

25. Cash flow information

Group Group Company Company
2024 2023 2024 2023

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000



£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Cash and cash equivalents 12,801 14,626 9,383 11,797
Lease l iabi l i ties (11,169) (11,644) (32) (43)
Net (debt)/cash 1,632 2,982 9,351 11,754
 

Assets
Liabi l i ties  from financing

activi ties
Cash and cash equivalents Lease

l iabi l i ties
Total

£'000 £'000 £'000
Net (debt)/cash at 1 October 2022 24,168 (12,456) 11,712
Cash flows (9,542) 1,472 (8,070)
New leases - (1,088) (1,088)
Finance expense - (564) (564)
Other changes - 3 3
Discontinued operations - 989 989
Net (debt)/cash at 30 September 2023 14,626 (11,644) 2,982
Cash flows (1,825)  (11) (1,836)
Financing payments  1,196 1,196
New leases -  (710) (710)
Finance expense -  (690) (690)
Interest payments  690 690
Other changes -  -- -
Net (debt)/cash at 30 September 2024 12,801  (11,169) 1,632
 

26. Financial instruments

a) Cash and cash equivalents

2024
£'000

2023
£'000

Current assets
Cash at bank 12,801 14,626

12,801 14,626
 

Reconci l iation to cash flow statement

The above figures  reconci le to the amount of cash shown in the statement of cash flows at the end of the financial  year as
fol lows:

2024
£'000

2023
£'000

Balance as  above 12,801 14,626

Balance per statement of cash flow 12,801 14,626
 

b) Assets and liabilities

 

Group Group Company Company
As restated

2024 2023 2024 2023
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Non-current assets   
Amounts  owed by Group undertakings - - 6,329 6,278
Current assets   
Trade receivables 20,536 23,272 64 340
Other receivables 678 524 8 2

21,214 23,796 72 342
Cash and cash equivalents 12,801 14,626 9,383 11,797
Total  financial  assets 34,015 38,423 9,455 12,139
Non-current liabilities   
Lease l iabi l i ties 9.638 9,818 23 10

9,638 9,818 23 10
Current liabilities   
Trade payables 12,055 13,683 201 107=8

  
Other payables 373 492 146 33
Accruals 656 804 309 367
Lease l iabi l i ties 1,531 1,826 42 51
Amounts  owed to Group undertakings - - - 905

14,616 16,805 710 1,464
Total  financial  l iabi l i ties  at amortised cost 24,253 26,623 733 1,474
 

27. Financial risk management

The Group and Company's  activi ties  expose i t to a  variety of financial  ri sks : credit risk, l iquidity risk, capital  ri sk and
market risk. The overal l  ri sk management programme focuses  on the unpredictabi l i ty of financial  markets  and seeks  to
minimise potentia l  adverse effects  on the Group's  financial  performance. Risk management is  carried out by the Board;
they have assessed the exposure, pol icies  and market conditions  and cons ider there to be no change to the pol icies
outl ined below:

a) Credit risk

Credit risk refers  to the risk that a  counterparty wi l l  default on i ts  contractual  obl igations  resulting in financial  loss . In
order to minimise this  risk the Group endeavours  only to deal  with companies  which are demonstrably creditworthy and
this , together with the aggregate financial  exposure, i s  continuously monitored.

The maximum exposure to credit risk i s  the value of the outstanding amount of cash balances, trade and other receivables
and contract assets :   

2024 2023
£'000 £'000

Continuing operations



Continuing operations
Group
Trade and other receivables 20,536 23,272
Contract assets 2,647 2,784
Cash and cash equivalents 12,801 14,626
Company
Trade and other receivables 374 453
Cash and cash equivalents 9,383 11,797
 

The Group cons iders  that credit risk on cash and cash equivalents  i s  low based on the external  credit ra)ngs  of the banks
used. I mpairment on cash and cash equivalents  has  been measured on a 12-month expected credit loss  bas is  and reflects
the short maturi ties  of the exposure. The maximum exposure is  the amount of the deposit.

Management cons ider default to be when companies  do not make payment when due; this  would further be cons idered as
impaired when i t becomes clear that no payment wi l l  be made. During the F Y2023 year, i lke Homes went into
administra)on crea)ng a credit loss  within Tamdown Group Ltd of £2,962,000. Management cons idered this  to be an
unusual  event. P rovis ion of services  by members  of the Group results  in trade receivables . Fol lowing a ful l  review of
receivables  management cons ider this  to continue to be of low risk.

b) Liquidity risk

Continuing operations

Group

The Group currently holds  cash balances  in sterl ing to provide funding for normal  trading ac)vity. Trade and other
payables  are monitored as  part of normal  management rou)ne. The Group's  financial  l iabi l i)es  have contractual
maturi ties  as  summarised below:

 

 Within one year Two to five years Over five years
2024 £'000 £'000 £'000
Lease l iabi l i ties 1,534 3,682 5,552
Trade payables 12,055  -
Accruals  and payments  on account 656 - -

Within one year Two to five years Over five years
2023 £'000 £'000 £'000
Lease l iabi l i ties 1,826 3,668 6,150
Trade payables 13,683 - -
Accruals  and payments  on account 804 - -
 

The borrowings  are net of any transaction costs  incurred. The transaction costs  are recognised in the income statement
over the period of the borrowings.

Company

The Company holds  minimum cash balances. Trade and other payables  are monitored as  part of normal  management
routine. Liabi l i ties  are disclosed as  fol lows:

 

 Within one year Two to five years Over five years
2024 £'000 £'000 £'000
Trade payables 201 - -
Amounts  owed to Group undertakings - - -
Accruals  and payments  on account 309 - -
Other payables 148 - -

Within one year Two to five years Over five years
2023 £'000 £'000 £'000
Trade payables 475 - -
Amounts  owed to Group undertakings 905 - -
Accruals  and payments  on account - - -
Other payables 33 - -
 
c) Capital risk management
The Group's  objec)ves  when managing capital  are to safeguard i ts  abi l i ty to con)nue as  a  going concern in order to
provide returns  for shareholders  and benefits  for other stakeholders  and to maintain a  capital  s tructure which op)mises
the cost of capital . I n order to maintain or adjust the capital  s tructure, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid
to shareholders , return capital  to shareholders  or i ssue new shares. Decis ions  regarding the balance of equity and
borrowings, dividend pol icy and al l  major borrowing faci l i ties  are reserved for the Board.
 
d) Foreign exchange and interest rate risk
The Group has  no s igni ficant exposure to currency risk or interest rate risk.
 
28. Share-based payments
 
No share schemes were operational  during 2024.
 
The total  share-based payments  charged to the statement of comprehensive income for 2023 was a  charge of £700,003.
 
29. Related party transactions
The Group's  key management personnel  are the Executive and Non-Executive Directors .
 
During the year the Group transacted total  sa les  with the fol lowing companies  of which Mike Morris  was  a lso a  director
unti l  15 August 2024:
 

2024 2023
£'000 £'000

Advanced Water Infrastructure Networks  Limited                        - 2
Advanced Electrici ty Networks  Limited - 1
Advanced Uti l i ty Networks  Limited 290 52
eSmart Networks  Limited 230 390
TriConnex Limited 382 783
 

30. Contingent assets and liabilities

Group and Company

Nexus I nfrastructure plc has  issued a leLer of support to Tamdown Group Ltd for 12 months  from the s igning of the
accounts .



accounts .

Under a  Group registra)on, the Company is  jointly l iable for value added tax by other Group companies . As  at 30
September 2024, there was a  value added tax asset of £678,000 (2023: £486,000).

During the financial  period to 30 September 2023, a  subs idiary had lodged a cla im against a  suppl ier for damages caused
by the supply of faulty services . The par)es  referred the maLer to an 'a l terna)ve resolu)on' process . A con)ngent asset of
£1.825m was recognised in the 2023 annual  report and was received in December 2023.

31. Capital commitments

Group and Company

At 30 September 2024, the Group had capital  commitments  of £1.13m rela)ng to plant and equipment (2023: £ni l ). The
Company had no capital  commitments  (2023: £ni l ).

32. Events after the reporting year

Group and Company

Acqui s i ti on of Col e ma n Cons tructi on a nd Uti l i ti e s  Li mi te d

O n 29 O ctober 2024, Nexus  I nfrastructure plc acquired 100% of the issued shares  in Coleman Construc)on and U)l i)es
Limited, a  civi l  engineering and construc)on bus iness  trading in the water, ra i l , highways, and rivers  & marine sectors  for
a cons idera)on of £5.38m.  The acquis i)on al igns  to Nexus  strategic objec)ve of divers i fying into addi)onal  key sectors
cri tical  to the UK infrastructure.

The financial  effects  of this  transac)on have not been recognised at 30 September 2024.  The opera)ng results  and assets
and l iabi l i ties  of the acquired company wi l l  be consol idated from 30 October 2024.

Details of the consideration transferred are:

£'000
Purchase cons ideration
Cash paid                 3,075
Contingent cons ideration 187
Settlement of inter company balances  and loans 818
Deferred cash cons ideration to a  maximum of 1,300
Total  purchase cons ideration 5,380
 

The provis ional ly determined fa ir values  of the assets  and l iabi l i ties  of Coleman Construction and Uti l i ties  Limited as  at
the date of acquis i tion are as  fol lows:

£'000
Cash and cash equivalents 548
Property, plant and equipment 688
Inventories 0
Receivables 2,997
Payables (990)
Borrowings (34)
Net deferred tax assets (58)
Net identi fiable assets  acquired 3,151
Add: Goodwi l l 2,229
Net assets  acquired 5,380
 
The goodwi l l  i s  aLributable to Coleman Construc)on and U)l i)es  strong pos i)on and profitabi l i ty in trading in the water
sector with synergies  expected to arise aKer the company's  acquis i)on of the new subs idiary. None of the good wi l l  i s
expected to be deductible for tax purposes.
 
The con)ngent cons idera)on arrangement requires  Nexus  I nfrastructure plc to pay a  maximum first earn-out
considera)on of £560,000 and a maximum second earn-out cons idera)on of £736,000 subject to achieving EB I TDA levels
of £850,000 for the first earn-out and £1,013,000 for the second earn-out cons idera)on. A catch-up mechanism is
included.
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